
RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  1  

 

CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER: 

 

Mayor Schweller called the Regular Meeting of the Bellbrook City Council to order at 7:00pm 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

Mayor Schweller led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

PRESENT 

Mrs. Katherine Cyphers 

Mr. Forrest Greenwood 

Mr. Brady Harding 

Mr. Ernie Havens 

Mr. T.J. Hoke 

Mrs. Elaine Middlestetter 

Mayor Mike Schweller 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ALSO PRESENT: 

 

Rob Schommer, City Manager 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

Mayor Schweller asked if anyone had comments or corrections to the minutes of the May 22, 2023 

meeting.  Hearing none, the minutes were declared to be approved. 

 

MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 

 

None 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

David Buccalo of 126 Lower Hillside Drive spoke on concerns with AES (tree trimmers) and other 

contractors in Bellbrook. He requested the city investigate their processes for accessing utility 

easements.    

 

Mayor Schweller thanked Mr. Buccalo for the information on contractor and stated this will be looked 

into.     

 

  



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  2  

 

PUBLIC HEARING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCES: 

 

Ordinance 2023-O-2: Authorizing the City Manager to submit the tax budget for fiscal year 2024 to the 

Greene County Auditors, and declaring an emergency (Cyphers) 

 

Mayor Schweller opened the public hearing and asked Mr. Schommer to explain the Ordinance. 

 

Mr. Schommer explained the Ordinance provides for submission of the 2024 tax budget to the County 

Tax Budget commission. It provides estimates for the related property taxes processed through the 

county and county budget commission. The emergency clause slows the budget to be in effect and 

submitted by the deadline.    

 

Mayor Schweller asked the council if they had any questions or comments.  

 

Mr. Hoke asked a question on Slide 17. The grand total of all funds and the increase. Mr. Schommer 

replied that is the total of the unencumbered balances plus projected receipts.     

 

Mayor Schweller asked if there were any other questions or comments from the council.   

 

Mayor Schweller stated since this is a public hearing, would anyone in the audience like to speak in 

favor or against Ordinance 2023-O-2.    

 

Mayor Schweller declared the public hearing closed.  

 

Mayor Schweller asked for a Motion to approve Ordinance 2023-O-2.    

Motion made by Mrs. Cyphers, Seconded by Mr. Hoke. 

Voting Yea: Mrs. Cyphers, Mr. Greenwood, Mr. Harding, Mr. Havens, Mr. Hoke, Mrs. Middlestetter, 

Mayor Schweller.  

Motion Carries 

 

 

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES: 

 

None 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

 

Resolution 2023-R-14: Creating a Charter Advisory Committee to review the city’s charter and make 

recommendations to council regarding any proposed amendments thereto (Schweller) 

 

Mayor Schweller asked Mr. Schommer to speak on the high points of the Resolution. 

 

Mr. Schommer replied that every ten years the Charter requires a review commission. The purpose is to 

conduct a review of the charter and bring forth recommendations so the council can decide if changes 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  3  

should be placed to the voters.   The Charter requires at least 15 members for the Charter Review 

Commission, and to date after months of attempts, there are only three applicants.  This alternate process 

allows the City to comply with Charter requirements for a review with the appointment of a 7 person 

body. 

 

Mayor Schweller asked if there must be exactly seven members for the Charter.   Mr. Schommer replied 

the recommendation is to have seven, mirroring the designated representation of Council for the 

community. 

 

The council discussed the number of members needed for the Charter Review Commission.  

 

Mr. Brady asked if we were to discuss this with someone in the community, what is the time 

commitment, overall process timeline, and what are we asking them to do. Mr. Schommer replied it 

would include meeting regularly to get a report of recommended changes to Council.  He noted it would 

likely be a multi-month commitment. He also noted, if passed the Resolution calls for a nomination from 

council for the members, and recommends council vote on names already provided and new ones at the 

next meeting.  

 

Mayor Schweller asked if there were any other questions or discussions on Resolution 2023-R-14.   

None 

 

Mayor Schweller asked for the Motion to Adopt Resolution 2023-R-14.      

Motion made by Mayor Schweller, Seconded by Mrs. Middlestetter. 

Voting Yea: Mrs. Cyphers, Mr. Greenwood, Mr. Harding, Mr. Havens, Mr. Hoke, Mrs. Middlestetter, 

Mayor Schweller. 

Motion Carries    

 

Resolution 2023-R-15: Authorizing the City Manager to execute an open-ended lease agreement with 

Enterprise Fleet Management (Hoke)  

 

Mayor Schweller asked Mr. Schommer to review the lease agreement on the purchases of police 

vehicles.   

 

Mr. Schommer provided details on the lease agreement option compared to regular budget, availability, 

maintenance, and cost of the vehicles. He noted the two main issues being faced is a market-based 

provide for vehicles and availability to even get vehicles.    

 

Mayor Schweller agreed with Mr. Schommer and would like to move forward. 

 

Mayor Schweller asked if there were any discussions among the council. 

 

Mrs. Middlestetter asked about Enterprise and getting vehicles. If no one can get them, how are they 

getting them.  Mr. Schommer replied it is a similar model they use for their rental fleet. They have 

buying power, availability of vehicles on the ground, access to vehicles in different areas and networks 

in the country.  



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  4  

 

Mr. Havens asked about the full-size truck mentioned to be a cruiser in the city. Mr. Schommer replied, 

yes, trucks are becoming more commonly used in law enforcement.  

 

Mr. Havens asked if there is any thought other than going up in size of a vehicle, going down in size for 

full economy. Mr. Schommer replied to the type of driving that we have; vehicles are comparable in fuel 

economy as they are.  

       

Mrs. Middlestetter asked about police driving. Is it hard on transmissions. Mr. Schommer replied yes, 

which is why getting a heavier duty vehicle is often necessary. 

 

Mr. Hoke asked if Enterprise would provide annual reports about leases and the vehicles showing the 

cost return. Mr. Schommer replied, yes, they provide routine actual cost of operation to show overall 

expenses per vehicle. He noted it is potentially a more cost-effective way to manage our fleet, as 

currently we simply purchase the vehicle and surplus it at its end of life.  

 

Mr. Hoke asked about our three main groups with vehicles, police, fire, maintenance. Who would be 

overall responsible for the entire fleet management. Mr. Schommer replied one of the advantages is, 

Enterprise would cover the cost of regular maintenance.   

 

Mr. Havens asked about making money from the sale of a vehicle. Are we at risk of losing money if the 

market changes and it’s under a certain level.    Mr. Schommer replied there is always a risk of not 

recouping costs, especially in vehicles. However, in this model, losing any more than the value of the 

vehicle that we are put into is very low. He noted the vehicles are owned by Enterprise, and their model 

is to rotate and lease vehicles to retain value.  The City would not lose any more cost than the agreed to 

lease. 

 

Mr. Harding asked what other communities are doing this same thing, and do they like it. Mayor 

Schweller replied, about ten different areas. Examples: Xenia, Beavercreek, Monroe, & Miamisburg.  

Yes, these communities are in favor of this lease agreement.        

 

Mr. Greenwood asked if there would be a learning curve on the changing of vehicles for the police.  

Officers and is this an issue. Mr. Schommer replied, they would be provided with an orientation and 

awareness of anything new coming in.     

 

Mrs. Cyphers asked would we lose depreciation from moving to a lease. Mr. Schommer replied, since it 

wouldn’t be listed as an asset, the lease is done differently. There is an equal conversion of that.     

Mayor Schweller stated it becomes a right of use of the asset for financial reporting.  

 

Mr. Hoke asked why Enterprise is coming directly to Bellbrook where the fleet is small. Would they 

want to bundle multiple cities. Mr. Schommer replied each city has different needs, and their program is 

set up for each vehicle being a separate lease agreement. Therefore the size and number do not have 

much of a factor.  He added Enterprise uses whatever vendors and custom set-up for the vehicles that we 

currently use; they are merely the fleet manager.   

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  5  

Mayor Schweller states it takes us out of the fleet business. Mr. Schommer replied, it frees up our 

resources. The cost is wrapped up in the lease.   

 

Mr. Harding stated it shows 16 maintenance locations near 45305. Do we pick what vendors we use. Mr. 

Schommer replied, if we have vendors, we can provide this to them. They can establish a partnership 

with them.   

 

Mr. Hoke made the Motion to approve Resolution 2023-R-15, Seconded by Mrs. Cyphers. 

Voting Yea: Mrs. Cyphers, Mr. Greenwood, Mr. Harding, Mr. Havens, Mr. Hoke, Mrs. Middlestetter, 

Mayor Schweller.  

Motion Carries.  

 

Mayor Schweller stated if we have issues and decide we are done like the game, we can be done. 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

None 

 

CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 

Mr. Schommer reported that we have received our draft audit report. Once reviewed and finalized it will 

be published.    

 

Mayor Schweller asked if anyone had questions for the City Manager.  

 

Mr. Greenwood replied to Mr. Buccalo’s concerns on contractors in the city and representatives 

assigned to us.  Mr. Schommer stated there used to be a community representative from AES and has 

had trouble getting in contact with anyone; however is in the process of emailing through the company 

to locate a representative.  

 

The Engage Bellbrook page we have a new project, Bellbrook Tomorrow. He encouraged residents to 

visit the site and provide feedback with the current survey.  

  

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

 

SAFETY:   

 

Mr. Hoke provided various updates: 

-Fire: Steven Lawrence was hired full time from the part time ranks. 

-Ohio Pharmacy Board did inspections at the fire department and found no issues.  



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  6  

-New World reporting system is up and running for the police department.  

-school resource officer interviews occur on June 15, 2023 

-New Officer Karen Moore starts with agency on June 26, 2023 

-Police and Fire participated with Care flight performing landing zone safety and hot/cold loading 

procedures.  

-Intern lined up from Cedarville College will start in the fall  

-Officer Travis Waller will complete field training this month and will be release for patrol on his own.   

-Captain Lane secured a Grant thru the ICAC for a voice stress analyzer to help in investigations.  

 

SERVICE: 

 

None  

 

FINANCE/GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS: 

 

None  

 

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS: 

 

Mrs. Middlestetter spoke about the vacancy on the Museum Board. Application coming online.   

 

CITY OFFICIAL COMMENTS: 

 

Mrs. Cyphers: None 

 

Mr. Brady: None  

 

Mr. Havens spoke on the new brewery in downtown Bellbrook. He mentioned two events coming up 

provided by the Chamber of Commerce.  

 

Mr. Hoke mentioned the new Sugarcreek brewing company in Bellbrook and Blueberry Café moving to 

larger location. He added the Halloween event planned for this year is still in process.  

 

Mrs. Middlestetter: None 

 

Mr. Greenwood spoke on attending the local leaders’ meeting in Xenia hosted by the Chamber of 

Commerce.  He noted updates to Spring Lakes park, that it is a great amenity to have close by.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

Mayor Schweller announces the need for an Executive Session to consider the purchase of property for 

public purposes, the sale of property at competitive bidding, or the sale or other disposition of unneeded, 

obsolete, or unfit-for-use property. 

 

Mayor Schweller asked for a Motion to enter Executive Session. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 Bellbrook City Council Meeting  

June 12, 2023 
 

  7  

Motion made by Mrs. Middlestetter, Seconded by Mr. Hoke.  

Voting Yea: Mrs. Cyphers, Mr. Greenwood, Mr. Harding, Mr. Havens, Mr. Hoke, Mrs. Middlestetter, 

Mayor Schweller.  

Motion Carries.  

 

Council entered executive session at 8:22pm 

 

Motion to exit executive session. 

Motion made by Mr. Greenwood, Seconded by Mr. Hoke. 

Voting Yea: Mrs. Cyphers, Mr. Greenwood, Mr. Harding, Mr. Havens, Mr. Hoke, Mrs. Middlestetter, 

Mayor Schweller 

 

Council exited executive session at 9:19 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Hearing no further business coming before the Council, Mayor Schweller declared the meeting 

adjourned at 9:20 pm 

 

 

______________________________________ 
Michael Schweller, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Robert Schommer, Clerk of Council  


